ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2003
3:30 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Robin Tayl or, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or John Cowdery
Senat or G et chen Cuess
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 49
"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
reconmended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date."

MOVED CSSB 49 (STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 65
"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Corrections to enter into
agreenents wth nunicipalities for new or expanded public
correctional facilities in the Fairbanks North Star Borough, the
Mat anuska- Susitna Borough, Bethel, and the Mnicipality of
Anchor age. "

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 49 — No previous action to record.
SB 65 — No previous action to record.
W TNESS REGQ STER

Panel a Finl ey

Revi sor of Statutes

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Room 329 Terry M Il er Building

Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned SB 49

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2003



Senat or Lyda G een

State Capitol, Room 516

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor SB 65

Thomas H. Boutin

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered fiscal note questions on SB 65

Charl es Canpbel |

Director of Corrections (Retired)
Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 65

Marc Antrim

Comm ssi oner - Desi ghee

Departnent of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 65

Jerry Burnett, Director

Adm ni strative Services

Department of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 65

Frank Pruitt
No address provided
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 65

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-3, SIDE A

CHAIR ROBIN TAYLOR called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present were Senators
Dyson, Cowdery and Chair Tayl or

The first order of business was SB 49, 2003 Revisor’'s Bill

#SB49
SB_ 49-2003 REVISOR S Bl LL

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2003



PAMELA FINLEY, Revisor of Statutes, presented SB 49 and noted
the attached sectional analysis. The purpose of the bill is to
correct drafting errors so statutes align with policy previously
deci ded by the Legislature. This is an annual “clean up” bill

She advised nenbers she had two anendnents to the bill. She
asked whet her Chair Taylor had anendnent \D.1 in his packet.

CHAIR TAYLOR replied he and other nenbers did have the
anmendnent .

M5. FINLEY explained the recorders office was authorized to use
serial nunbers for recording docunments rather than book and page
nunbers in 1996. Unfortunately, a nunber of other statutes that
should have been anended to reflect this change were not, so
this anendnent sinply adds a reference to a serial nunber as an
alternative to book and page nunbers.

CHAIR TAYLOR called for a notion to adopt the anendnment for
di scussi on purposes.

SENATOR COWDERY made a notion to adopt anendnent 23-LS0192\D.1
Finley 2/10/03 for discussion purposes.

SENATOR DYSON asked whet her the anmendnent put in new Sections 11
and 12 nmeking the old Section 11 Section 13.

MS. FINLEY replied that is correct.

CHAIR TAYLOR called for the record to reflect Senator @uess
j oi ned the neeting.

SENATOR DYSON asked about concerns expressed by Stacie Kraly and
whet her she objected to the anmendnent.

MS. FINLEY explained Ms. Kraly’'s nmeno is a separate nmatter from
\D.1 and she woul d expl ain that subsequently.

CHAIR TAYLOR informed Senator Guess anendnent 1, designated
Finley 2/10/03 \D. 1, was pending adoption. He then explained the
amendnent to the Senator.

There being no objection, amendnment 1, Finley 2/10/03 \D. 1, was
adopt ed.

M5. FINLEY introduced anmendnent 2, which deletes Sections 60, 61
and 66. Those sections involve a nanme change from the Ad to

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2003



Famlies wth Dependent Children to the federal program
Tenporary Assistance for Needy Famlies. Apparently, when the
Department of Health and Social Services |ooked at the sections
again they realized there are substantive problens they want to
fix el sewhere. Changing the nane would actually cause them nore
difficulties.

CHAIR TAYLOR called for the record to reflect Senator Hoffnan
j oi ned the neeting.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked for a notion to amend by renoving the three
sections

SENATOR COADERY nmade a notion to adopt anendnent 2 to renove
Sections 60,61 and 66 from 23-LS0192\ D.

There being no objection, amendnent 2 was adopt ed.
CHAI R TAYLOR asked whet her there were additional anmendments.
M5. FINLEY replied she had nothing further.

CHAI R TAYLOR thanked Ms. Finley and expressed gratitude for her
excel l ent work.

There being no further testinony on SB 49, Chair Taylor called
for a notion to nobve the bill fromcommttee.

SENATOR COWNDERY made a notion to nove CSSB 49 (STA) from
committee with individual recommendati ons.

There being no objection it was so ordered.
#
#SB65
SB 65- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON

CHAI R TAYLOR announced the next matter of business to cone
before the coomittee was SB 65 and noted a significant nunber of
people were waiting to testify on the bill. He informed nenbers
that both the Departnments of Corrections (DOC) and Revenue (DOR)
prepared fiscal notes.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN, prinme sponsor of SB 65, gave the follow ng
i ntroduction to SB 65:

The need for additional prison beds in Alaska has
been recognized by the Legislature for a nunber of

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2003



years. Currently, there are about 650 Alaskan
prisoners being held in facilities outside of Al aska.
The noney that |eaves Alaska to pay for the housing
of these prisoners provides jobs and economc
activity in Arizona instead of Al aska.

Senate Bill 65 provides |egislative authorization for
the expansion of state prisons by |ocal governnents.
Under the provisions of SB 65, |ocal governnents would
finance the construction of new prison facilities and
additional beds at facilities currently owned by the
state. The State of Alaska would then enter into
| ong-term | eases and operate the facilities as part of
the state correctional system This financing
mechani sm allows the state to acquire facilities wth
no upfront capital costs. It benefits both the state
and | ocal economes with construction jobs and | ong-
termjobs in the facilities.

The need for additional prison beds in Alaska is

virtual ly uncontest ed. However, the location of
facilities, the nethod of financing the construction
and who wll operate the new facilities all raise
I ssues. In 1998, the Legislature authorized the

construction of a privately constructed and operated
prison wwth a mninmm of 800 beds in Delta Junction.
The prison was not built. In 2001, the Legislature
passed HB 149, which provided for construction of a
m nimum of 800 private prison beds on the Kenai
Peni nsul a. Again, the prison was not built. I
believe it is time to go in a new direction in order
to finally address this chronic and increasing prison
bed space problem

SB 65 provides a long-termsolution to Al aska’s prison
bed space problem The proposed expansions to existing
facilities in Bethel, Fairbanks and Anchorage (federal

prisoner unit expansion) wll provide relief to the
nost chronically over-crowded regional hubs. The new
1,200-bed facility wll provide the npbst cost-

effective in-state solution to bringing Alaska’s
prisoners hone from Arizona, relieving prison bed
over-crowdi ng issues in other regions of the state, as
wel | as providing additional bed space for the state’s
proj ected prisoner popul ation increases.

| ask for your support and swi ft passage of SB 65.

SENATOR GUESS noted letters of support from the Mat-Su area and
asked where the comunities of Anchorage, Fairbanks and Bet hel
stand on the |egislation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2003



SENATOR GREEN said information would be forthcom ng from Bet hel
She thought the issue is still under discussion in the Fairbanks
comunity; she said it is her wunderstanding that Fairbanks
currently supports SB 65. She was wunable to say whether
Anchorage would be supporting SB 65. She explained the prison
addition in Anchorage is different in that it will house federa
prisoners and the expansion 1is contingent wupon receipt of
federal noney.

SENATOR HOFFMAN said he spoke with the city manager [of Bethel]
yesterday. He said correspondence fromthe city in support of SB
65 woul d be forthcom ng.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the new addition would be adjacent to the
existing facility in Sutton.

SENATOR GREEN said that is correct.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the conmmunity of Sutton is in favor of
t he expansi on.

SENATOR CGREEN told nmenbers the [Mat-Su] Borough brought the
proposal to her. She said she couldn’t answer yes or no about
Sutton, as she has not polled the community. She added the road
that |eads back into the prison is inside the conmunity of
Sutton. She estimated the prison is two to three mles fromthe
r oad.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the expansion would take place on state
owned | and.

SENATOR GREEN said that is correct.

SENATOR DYSON noted an earthquake fault zone runs close to that
area and asked if it would present a problem

SENATOR GREEN replied that earthquake fault zones run throughout
all of Alaska and she would assume the building would be
designed to be earthquake resistant.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if the comunity would support an identica
facility in the sanme spot if it were privately operated.

SENATOR GREEN said that discussion occurred about five or six

years ago when a forner Senator from Kasilof recomended an
experinmental pilot project. She recalled sonme opposition to that

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2003



project. She said she assunes the answer is yes, but she was not
certain.

CHAIR TAYLOR said it seens like this issue always turns into a
hotly debated and enotional issue in every community that has
addressed it. He said the debate doesn't seem to have anything
to do with the fact that the project is a prison but instead,
whet her the prison would be publicly or privately operat ed.

SENATOR GREEN said that is the only discussion she could recall
since she's been involved and there seened to be sone opposition
toit.

SENATOR DYSON stated that in the two previous iterations the
Legi sl ature has been through in attenpts to resolve the shortage
of prison space, nobst people were primarily concerned about the
nunber of prisoners residing outside of the state. For whatever
reason, Al aska Natives are disproportionately represented in the
prison popul ation, so the Native comunity activist groups have
ent husiastically supported returning those prisoners to Al aska.
He asked if the local Native community in the Sutton area has
expressed an interest in that |ocation.

SENATOR GREEN said not to her know edge, but she thought nenbers
woul d be pleased to see the physical arrangenment of the facility
proposed for the Mt-Su Borough because it has separate w ngs
that would enable prograns to be tailored to the needs of the
i nmat e popul ati on.

SENATOR DYSON asked, "I assume, if | nay continue, you haven't
heard from t he Chickal oon people and how they are really | ooking
forward to working with the facility?"

SENATOR GREEN sai d she has not.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if Sutton is about 75 mles from
Anchor age.

SENATOR GREEN said it is about 20 mles from Palner, which is
about 42 mles from Anchorage.

SENATOR COWNDERY said he asked the question because during the
hearings held on building a prison in Wittier, concern was
expressed about Wiittier being too far from police protection

hospitals, and other services. He noted that Wiittier is closer
t o Anchor age.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2003



SENATOR GREEN felt one factor that has evolved with the prisoner
and pre-trial facility in Palmer is that Palnmer is fairly well
adapted and ready to serve nost of the needs of a prison
expansi on, whet her those needs be supplies or hospital services.

CHAIR TAYLOR noted Tom Boutin was available to answer questions
on the fiscal note.

MR, TOM BQUTIN, Departnent of Revenue, told nenbers that he
prepared the analysis of the fiscal note.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if actual title to the property will remain
with the nunicipality that builds the prison or whether the
state would eventually own it.

MR. BOUTIN said he would prefer that question be directed to the
sponsor because, from the way the bill was witten, he is not
sure. He said he presuned, in the fiscal note, that the
municipality would own the facility at the end of the |ease
term

CHAI R TAYLOR said the cost of building the facility is actually
reflected in the lease to the extent that the total cost of
construction would be anortized over the | ease with sonme profit,
that profit being the cost of the interest on the bonds and the
handling of those bonds. He said he assunmes the state would be
responsi bl e for mai ntenance of the facility as the | essee.

MR. BOUTIN said no matter who owns the facility, t he
construction costs plus the bond issuance costs would equal the
net present value of the |ease paynents out to the maturity.
That is true no matter who the owner wll be. Regarding the
second question, he said he could speak to the debt, but the
Department of Corrections would have to speak to the operating
costs.

SENATOR COWDERY asked if any federal funds are available for
this project.

MR. BOQUTIN said he does not know about federal funding and
deferred to the Departnent of Corrections.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if M. Boutin could address the fungibility
of noney, neaning that it wll cost the state x nunber of
dollars to have the nunicipalities finance this piece of state
obligation. He noted M. Boutin has estimated $4.368 mllion as
the cost of issuing the bonds.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2003



MR. BOUTIN said that is correct and the state has a | ot of |ease
debt, the last being the APl building in Anchorage. He pointed
out hardly a year goes by in which the state doesn't have an
issue of |ease debt. The issuance costs are usually about two
percent of the size. The biggest portion of the cost is the
underwriter. The underwiter mght charge as nuch as $8 per
bond, the bond neaning $1,000. The other costs include a
financial advisor - a bond counsel that gives the opinion that
the debt is tax exenpt, the printing costs of the official
statenent and sone significant advertising costs.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if this instance would require four different
bond i ssues by four different nunicipalities.

MR. BOUTIN said he is not sure, but when doing the fiscal note,
he made that assunption. The costs he listed are fixed costs so
one issuance would reduce them The |argest portion of the cost,
the underwriter, is on a per bond basis so there is not "a |ot
of juice" in doing all four issues at once.

CHAIR TAYLOR said that is why he asked the question about
ownership. To secure the bonds, the taxing ability of that
municipality has to be pledged. He asked if those bonds are al so
being secured wth the private property owned by the
municipality that wll house the building, simlar to a hone
nort gage arrangenent.

MR. BQUTIN said, as he stated in the fiscal note, he presuned
the full faith and credit of the nmunicipality would not be
pl edged. If that were contenplated, the financing arrangenent
woul d be entirely different.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if they would be [indisc.] bonds as opposed
to muni ci pal bonds.

MR. BOQUTIN said he assuned the security would be the state |ease
paynents. If the municipalities went to the voters for the ful
faith and credit of the nunicipality, which he doesn't believe
would be the case, an entirely different kind of bond issue
woul d be created and the fiscal note would not apply.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if the [fiscal note] applies to revenue bonds
for a nunicipality.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 20, 2003



MR BOQUTIN said they are called |ease revenue bonds or
certificates of participation in the lease, but all fall under
the generic term"bonds."

CHAI R TAYLOR noted that the generic term "bonds" also includes
general obligation bonds and he was trying to distinguish that
these would not be general obligation bonds of the nmunicipality
but would be either revenue bonds or certificates of
participation paid for the state's |ease.

MR, BOUTIN said the fiscal note makes the assunption the
municipality will not bring credit to the deal and that the
credit will be the |ease paynents. He clarified in Section 2 he
assunmed the nmunicipalities would bring no pledge of additional
security to the financings, other than the state's credit and
the bond sale proceeds. If the full faith and credit of a
municipality were pledged, there wuld be no need for a
Departnent of Revenue fiscal note.

SENATOR GREEN told nenbers the Departnment of Corrections also
has information and soneone from the WMat-Su Borough was
avai l abl e to answer questions on that issue via tel econference.

There being no further questions of M. Boutin, Chair Taylor
t hanked himand called M. Canpbell to testify.

MR. CHARLES CAMPBELL, Director of the Division of Corrections 24
years ago, said he believes that SB 65 is an excellent bill from
the standpoint of corrections and congratul ated the sponsors. He
said he is not aware of the bed space projections, but he I|ikes
the idea of Sutton as a location. He feels it is crucial to
bring prisoners back to Alaska from Arizona. Al aska's
Constitution requires correctional admnistration to be based on
principles of reformation and on the protection of the public.
The state is not abiding by that requirenent. Studies have
concl uded, unm stakably, that reasonable proximty to hone and
comunity resources is very inportant to provide released
prisoners a better chance. He said he does not like to think
about the fact that a lot of nen, over the years, have been
released back into the community unprepared. He hopes this
| egi sl ati on noves forward.

MR. CAMPBELL said he has testified in the past against prison
designs that are large and nonolithic. However, although |arge,
the design presented with SB 65 would be conpatible with unit
managenment. It would elimnate the disadvantages of an overly
large prison but it wll require experienced staff to be

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 20, 2003



successful. He favors the Sutton |ocation because SB 65 will be
part of a prison conplex; Palner canp is located there. It is
advant ageous to have staff available and to be in a conmunity
with a lot of people. He believes the very best correctional
program is one nade up of conmunity volunteers. He said one
woul dn't believe the way people volunteer to help out from
churches and civic cl ubs.

SENATOR CONDERY asked M. Canpbell what the popul ation of Sutton
is.

MR. CAMPBELL said he did not know but recalled that Helen Bierne
(ph), the former comm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and
Services, tried to seek a site in Sutton about 20 years ago for
the prison that ended up being built in Seward. He noted Sutton
is a rural community with good resources, such as churches and
organi zati ons. Professionals, such as clinical psychol ogists and
physicians, reside within a reasonable distance. He repeated
that the potential for volunteerism is excellent. He asked the
Legislature to look at that fact that the state cannot skinp on
prograns anynore. Alaska's failure to develop strong treatnent
prograns for alcohol abuse has been very destructive to the
state. The prodigious effect of alcohol on crine in Alaska is
m nd- boggl i ng. He offered to answer questi ons.

CHAI R TAYLOR thanked M. Canpbell and asked a representative of
the Departnent of Corrections to testify.

MR. MARC ANTRIM Conm ssioner-designee of the Departnent of
Corrections, told menbers that SB 65 is fully supported by
Governor Murkowski and DOC. They believe SB 65 wll fully neet
the needs of DOC and this Admnistration's commtnment to public
safety. He then gave a power point presentation on SB 65,
sumari zed as foll ows.

DOC currently operates facilities all over Alaska. If the
Legi slature authorizes DOC to construct a prison, this DOC is
commtted to a no-frills approach to prison construction (Page
2) .

DOC s projected inmate popul ation statistics show an additional
1, 000 prisoners by January 2007, whi ch i ncl udes t he
approxi mately 650 prisoners in Arizona (Page 3).

CHAI R TAYLOR asked how many beds woul d be needed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2003



COW SS| ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM said about 1600 additional beds
woul d be needed in 2007.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if DOC woul d need new facilities beyond that.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said DOC would also tie in sone
alternative incarceration progranms, such as wellness courts, to
take sonme of the pressure off on the | ower custody prisoners.

He then continued his presentation by showing a chart of
institution activity. He noted the chart shows why it is so
difficult to conpare projects (Page 7). He explained the
facilities operated by DOC are nulti-functional. 30, 000
prisoners nmove in and out of facilities and, in addition, DOCC
has a lot of transfers from booking facilities to sentence
facilities and hal fway houses, which is why the cost of care is
so expensive. Booking is a very expensive conponent because DOC
must nedically screen prisoners, and do classifications and
t hreat assessnents.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M expl ai ned the diagram on page 5 is
a conceptual design of how the facility mght be run and
staffed, but it is not the final design.

The chart of specifications on page 6 shows the facility would
hold 1200 prisoners in four, 20-bed nmedium security pods. To
econom ze, three prisoners would be housed in each cell. The
cells would be dry [without plunbing] and 80 percent of the
prisoners would be nedium security prisoners. Each housing unit
woul d have group shower and toilet facilities. The facility
woul d  neet the American Correctional Association (ACA)
standards, as well as the standards of the State of Al aska,
regardi ng square footage. Approximtely 15 percent of the cells
woul d be doubl e-bunked, close custody cells with a toilet and
sink in each cell. Approximately 5 percent of the facility would
have maxi mum security cells.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M pointed out DOC does not favor
| arge facilities because they are hard to nanage. However, this
plan nmust be large to attain econony of scale. DOC proposes
breaking the facility into three small wunits, each run as a
separate facility.

SENATOR COADERY asked Conmi ssioner-designee Antrim to describe
t he open space in the mddle.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2003



COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M said that would be the preparation
yard.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how they woul d deal with snow renoval

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM  said snow would be blown out
through the break points. He then reestablished the schematic
was designed for the purpose of getting a handle on the costs
and preparing a fiscal note; it is not a final design.

CHAIR TAYLOR said, given the transition in admnistrations,
menbers appreciate the fact the proposal is hypothetical. He
advi sed nenbers he visited the facility in Florence, Arizona
just after Alaska's first prisoners arrived. He asked the
Comm ssioner how this hypothetical facility conpares with the
physi cal structure of the facility that 700 Al askan prisoners
are currently being housed in.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M said he has not had the opportunity
to travel to Florence. However, it should be simlar in that the
Florence facility tries to maximze the lines of sight from the
central control points.

TAPE 03-3, SIDE B
4:30 pm

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM said that’s key to saving noney in
new design features. One person can run the entire unit. |If
soneone gets out of line, they can call for backup from staff on
standby. This is a big point for putting the proposed facility
on the Palnmer canpsite. In the event of an energency, they could
make use of the Palnmer mninmm and nedium facility staff at the
hi gher security facility.

CHAIR TAYLOR comented both the wonen’s prison and the nen’s
prison in Florence, Arizona, are simlar in design to the star
configuration with the central control in the mddle, but the
Corrections Corporation facility is different. He asked for a
nore thorough conparison at the next hearing.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM agreed to do so. The diagram on
page 8 contained a closer view of a conceptual housing unit. The
security post is in the mddle of a three wng star with 20
cells per wing. Econony is built into the concept plan in terns
of security features for the nmedium security facility. There are
no autonmated | ocking doors on the cells. This is simlar to the
W | dwood Correctional Facility where prisoners are free to cone

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 20, 2003



and go from their cells. Cells at the Lenon Creek facility in
Juneau have notorized security doors, which is very expensive

The only notorized door in the conceptual plan is between the
security post and the three w ng bl ock.

He referred to page 9 to show a conceptual unit wi ng. Tel ephones
are located in the main area of the dayroom showers and
restroons are on one end of the wing and the security post is at
the other. It’s |ess expensive to have the plunbing at one end
rather than in every cell

SENATOR COADERY asked what woul d happen in the case of a riot in
a facility in which prisoners are able to nove in and out of
their cells at will.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied several facilities are
currently of this design and enphasized this is a nmedium
security facility. An assessnment system is designed to weed out
probl ens. The beauty of the proposal is that, at any given tine,
they would deal with no nore than 60 prisoners while the rest of
the facility is secured. They would nmke wuse of current
technol ogy |i ke pepper spray to control the popul ation.

SENATOR DYSON asked him to point to where the security people
woul d be | ocat ed.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM pointed out a security control
room

SENATOR DYSON asked how security people would know if a prisoner
was being assaulted in one of the roons and wasn't making any
noi se.

COWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE  ANTRIM responded DOC policies require
hourly checks throughout each of the housing units. Staff would
be in and out all the time. Wen DOC assesses prisoners,
security factors are taken into account.

SENATOR DYSON asked what prisoner-to-guard ratios were used.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied the prisoner to staff ratio
woul d be 6 to 1.

SENATOR DYSON figured there would be 10 staff for 60 people and
asked if they woul d be spread over three shifts.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2003



COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM responded that is an accepted
i ndustry standard, but it is deceptive. The 1 to 6 ratio is
determined by the total nunber of prisoners versus the total
nunber of staff. He pointed out, “It is deceiving in that the
actual nunber of staff at any given time is nuch less than
that.”

SENATOR DYSON asked if there would be two or three shifts.

COM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM  replied that he envisioned a
standard shift pattern of four 12-hour shifts.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there would be two people on duty at any
one tine.

COWMWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied that one wunit would be
staffed by one person with roving security patrols to cover the
entire facility. Each unit would house 240 prisoners in the six
pods.

SENATOR DYSON asked how many rovers there woul d be.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied there would be a total of
288 staff (100 support staff and 188 correction officers) at
that facility of which 49 or 50 correction officers would be on
at any one tine. He stressed that this is a nedium custody
facility.

SENATOR CONDERY asked the square footage of the cells.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied a three-person |ayout has
approximately 180 sq. ft. The prisoners work around the prison
and aren’t sitting in their cells all the tinme. He pointed out
the specialized areas in the |ayout.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if the facilities were going to be owned by
the communities, who would decide on the design.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied the departnent would hire
the architects and do the design. They are shopping around for a
“cookie-cutter design” — sonething that’ s already established.

CHAIR TAYLOR asked if the plans would be bid to the private
sector.

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied the state would go through
the contract process and award it to the | owest bidder.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2003



CHAI R TAYLOR asked what happens to the state under this process
if DOC designs it as opposed to hiring a private architect.

COW SSI ONER- DESIGNEE  ANTRIM  replied DOC hired a private
architect. DOC has a facilities managenent team that is charged
with facilities naintenance and has heavy involvenent in any
constructions fromthe first day of the design process.

CHAIR TAYLOR said it is good the state has that oversight and he
just wanted to be clear on procedures. He asked if they could do
design-build as a concept.

COWMWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied DOC mght do that and
reenphasi zed the diagramis for denonstration and di scussion.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how soon a facility could be conplete.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied the normal tineline for one
of these projects is about 4.5 to 5 years fromthe tinme the bil
is passed. They would like to have it open in four years.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked how long it would take to sell the bonds
to do this.

COWM SSI ONER- DESIGNEE~ ANTRIM  replied he didn't know. He
expl ai ned they extrapol ated sone of the costs so they could have
a conprehensive fiscal note.

SENATOR COWDERY asked if he considered noving the facility away
fromthe earthquake fault area in which it is currently planned.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied the facility nmanagenent
people in the two existing facilities contacted the geol ogist
who wote the article and received sonme good news. Apparently
the real problem with the fault lies closer to Houston severa
mles away. The geol ogi st assured him the fault is about three
m | es bel ow the surface at Sutton.

SENATOR COWNDERY said his concern was that it costs nore to build
in an earthquake fault zone.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M said the Seward facility took three
years from begi nning of design to opening the door. That’s what
DOC is planning. He thought that includes tine to sell the bonds
and do the design.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 20, 2003



CHAI R TAYLOR commented it took nine nonths from the tinme the
contractor at the Arizona prison applied for the first building
permt until the first prisoner noved in. He added, “That’'s what
the private sector did.”

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM showed an overview of what the
facility mght look like on page 14. It has a perineter road,
double fencing, and has the recreation facility wthin the
buil ding structure. Additionally, he noted the maxi mum security
or close custody housing. He pointed out the area where
pri soners could work, the naintenance area, and industry areas,
whi ch are common features in nost state facilities.

He said there were two floors of cells in each of the w ngs and
it would be possible to have culturally relevant housing and a
faith-based program in another area, as exanples. Another
feature of this plan is if there was a sudden down-turn in the
econony or a disaster, and assum ng sonething could be done with
the prisoners, one or tw of the buildings could be closed,
staff could be put in layoff and the other two could Kkeep
wor king. He explained, “It’s nmuch nore flexible than if you had
a contract of sone sort.”

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said the problem with conparing
facilities is they have a group of facilities that do a nunber
of different functions, which results in different prices. For
exanple, Palnmer Correctional Center is nmediummninmm and it
costs about $57.17 per day versus Lenobn Creek, which is a multi-
function booking facility. Because of that and because it is in
Juneau, its costs are higher. The Anchorage jail just opened and
runs about $157.26 per day per person. Page 16 conpares costs in
SB 65 of $74.14 to the costs in HB 55 of $91.00. The SB 65
figure includes $46.51 in operating costs and $27.63 for capital
costs.

HB 55 says the alternative facility would be operating at a per
day rate of $91-$94. He chose the lower of the two figures to
give the benefit of a doubt. He was not clear what the capita
costs would be for that facility. Both facilities are doing
exactly the sanme mi ssion and assune a 25-year term on the debt
i ssued.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M said any corrections project would
have sone program costs and those are specifically excluded
under HB 55. There is quite a bit of variation in the operating
costs. The costs for inmate prograns, health care, D vision of
Adm ni stration and support costs, and statew de direct costs are

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2003



fixed at $36.25. The total averages out to be $113.31 system
wi de. He explained there are facilities that do a wide variety
of mssions and are also in expensive areas across the state.
Al of those conbined give them the average cost per prison per
day. But, in the Palner Correctional Center, a medium custody
facility, they start with an institution cost of $57.17 and end
up with a total cost of $93.42. There’'s a lot of variation in
t here.

So when we talk about a conparison cost of $113. 31,
it’s problematic, which is why conparing SB 65 to HB
55 is a nmuch nore honest way to assess — or to do this
conparison rather than conparing what we’'re operating
in the state now — because they do a wide variety of
mssions as opposed to the facilities that are
proposed under both these bills.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked himto explain the tents.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied tents are used seasonally
at a nunber of facilities for overflow Lenon Creek is the only
facility that | eaves one up year-round.

CHAI R TAYLOR said they could disregard those because they are
t enporary.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M sai d that was correct.

CHAI R TAYLOR said instead of taking the |east expensive facility
cost statew de of $93.42 (Palner), he asked what the costs were
at the facilities |Iike Bethel.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M responded Bethel is known as the
Yukon- Kuskokwi m Correctional Center and has costs of $145.63 per
day.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked how many prisoners would be added in Bethel.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied, “There would be 120 beds
in Bethel.”

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if that was an increase of 120.
COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M replied that was an increase.

CHAIR TAYLOR asked if they projected any cost savings for
Bet hel .

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2003



COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied there would be econony of

scale in Bethel, but the savings would cone in reduced
transportation. Bethel currently has a capacity of 90 and they
are over-capacity all the tinme. About 90 percent of the

popul ation is pre-trial and they have to get the prisoners
awaiting trial out. Cost savings wuld cone from reduced
transports to and fromother facilities, nanely Anchorage.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked what the costs were in the other facilities
t hat woul d be expanded.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied the Fairbanks Correctiona
Center has a cost of $126.17.

MVR. JERRY  BURNETT, Director of Adm ni strative Services,
Department of Corrections, explained the additional cost per day
for new prisoners in Bethel was $93 per day.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM  added that figure would drop
substantially from $145. Page 18 shows what the two facilities
woul d cost with the fixed costs added in. The facility in SB 65
woul d run $110.39 (including $27.63 — capital costs) per person
per day and the proposed facility in HB 55 would run $127.25
(capital costs not specified) per day.

CHAIR TAYLOR asked, if the fixed and other direct costs are
going to exist in the future as well as now, what the prisoners
in Arizona cost. He questioned, “ls that included in the Arizona
cost right now — the $36.257?"

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied the state’s contract wth
the Arizona facility assumes a nunber of services and excludes a
nunber as well. “It’s a different cal cul ation,” he noted.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if there is a total figure for health care
and each of the things listed as fixed in the Arizona contract.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied the cost is about $66.10
per day per person in Arizona.

CHAI R TAYLOR asked if that includes alnost all of those fixed
costs.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M said they were |ooking at $135, 000
per bed x $1,200 and that totals $162,000,000. They are | ooking

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 20, 2003



at an annual |ease factor of $10,083 per bed at 25 years at 5.5
percent interest.

SENATOR DYSON said the fiscal note says $14, 600 per bed.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M replied the bill says up to $14, 600
per bed, but he thought the fiscal note actually said $10, 000.

CHAI R TAYLOR said at one point they were paying $135, 000 per bed
and even at $10,000 per bed x 25 years, that’'s a quarter of a
mllion dollar cost per bed in actual costs “...by the tinme you
factor in paying off the bonds and the interest and paying the
| ease paynment to soneone else to either own, build or have the
facility for us.”

COVWM SS| ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M sai d that was correct.

CHAI R TAYLOR recapped the actual cost to the state if it goes as
hi gh as $14,000 per year is going to be $350, 000 to $400, 000 per
bed.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M expl ained SB 65 contains nore than
just one facility. It provides for a prison expansion in Bethe

of 120 beds. This is critical as Bethel is a regional hub with
approximately 60,000 people in the area. It is served by a
superior court, which generates a lot of pre-trial activity.
Again, the facility is at capacity or over about 95 percent of
the time. They anticipate staffing of 11 for the facility; that
woul d include two security posts at any given tinme, providing a
ratio of 1 to 5.5-5.8.

CHAIR TAYLOR asked why the state should build a full-tine
facility for nmedium security prisoners with a certain nunber of
beds when the state obviously needs a pre-trial facility. He
said it is obvious the need for long term prisoners is very
smal|l conpared to the pre-trial requirenments. He pointed out the
nunmber could run as high as 25,000 to 30, 000.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM said that is essentially what this
facility expansion is. It is designed to neet that pre-trial
popul ati on need. He explained DOC s original proposal was for an
80- bed expansion but, after speaking with Senator Hoffmn and
DOC s transportation staff, the nunber was increased to 120. He
noted the 80 beds would make a difference but DOC would still be
doi ng transports on a daily basis.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 20, 2003



COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M descri bed the expansion plans and
the staffing requirenents for the Fairbanks facility. He told
menbers the final piece of SB 65 involves an expansion of the
Anchorage jail. That proposal was brought to DOC by the U S.
Marshall's Service, which currently contracts with DOC to house
federal retainees for the US. Mrshall's and the INS. That
contract is met or exceeded at all tinmes. The U S. Marshall's

Service has announced that it wll be expanding its presence
primarily in Anchorage and Juneau over the next few years. That
expansion will increase |law enforcenent activity in the state
and will necessitate nore bed space. SB 65 enconpasses receipt

authority in the amunt of $30 mllion and, should the
Legi sl ature appropriate that noney, DOC would see the expansion
for a 200 bed project. Staffing would be paid through the added
receipts generated by the client billing to the federa
gover nnment .

CHAIR TAYLOR asked if the U S. Mrshall's Ofice operates any
prisons or whether it always contracts out for services.

COM SSI ONER- DESIGNEE ANTRIM said it does operate an |[INS
facility outside of the Seattle airport. He said nost of its
work is done under contract to states.

CHAIR TAYLOR asked if the State of Al aska would act as
contractor to the U S. Marshall's Ofice.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said DOC already does; this would
expand that to neet the increased federal need by 200 beds. He
then pointed out the location (on page 25) for that expansion is
t he Anchorage jail on 3rd Ave.

CHAI R TAYLOR thought the Legislature just paid a huge anount of
noney to expand that jail.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M agreed and said it was actually new
construction. He noted the addition would be nade up of three
housi ng pods that would hold an additional 200 prisoners. He
told nenbers sonme Senators expressed concern that facilities are
not being built in their areas. He said it is inportant to think
about DOC as a corrections system The benefit, for exanple, to
the residents of Juneau, Wil | cone directly from the
construction of a 1200 bed facility in the Mat-Su. R ght now, at
any given time, 30 to 50 percent of the Lenon Creek popul ation
is from the Anchorage area. DOC envisions the population of
prisoners will shift around to nmake room for |ocal residents
once the new facility opens. The additional capacity wll put

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 20, 2003



the corrections system back on track regarding the specialized
m ssions of many of the facilities, for exanple the W]I dwood
Correctional Center was envisioned as a nedium security facility
Wi th prison industries prograns. At this point, the systemis so
overcrowded those m ssions have gone by the wayside. Right now
prisoners aren’t kept in prison industries or treatnent prograns
because they have to be transferred around just to bal ance out
bed counts.

SENATOR QGUESS asked if the fiscal note is for all of the
facilities or just Palmer and how the Comm ssioner foresees
phasing in the expansions and the Palnmer facility.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said 4.5 years is a worse case
scenario. If this project is authorized, DOC plans to put this
on a fast track and will do everything possible to get the bonds
i ssued qui ckly and begi n construction.

SENATOR GUESS said she didn't know if the plan was to start all
projects at once or whether it was to do the new facility first.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said the fiscal notes assuned the
projects would all be done at once.

SENATOR GUESS then asked if the $41 mllion on the fiscal note
takes into account the cost savings of housing prisoners in
Ari zona.

SENATOR GUESS then indicated the $25 mllion would be taken away
from the $41 nmillion leaving an additional $16 nillion in
operating costs.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM said the Arizona operating costs
woul d be rolled into the new facility.

SENATOR GUESS said the fiscal note assumes no savings.

MR. BURNETT said it doesn't show the savings from Ari zona.
SENATOR HOFFMAN pointed out the fiscal note does not reflect the
savings froma fewer nunber of transfers once the new facilities

are built.

MR. BURNETT agreed it does not.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2003



SENATOR HOFFMAN said the transportation costs anmount to between
$2 and $3 nmillion so savings would be achieved in |owered
transportation expenses.

COW SS| ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M said that is correct.
5:15 p.m

SENATOR DYSON asked if he thought public policy should override
t he econom ¢ concerns.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M answered he didn't think it shoul d.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the reason Arizona prisoners are in a
publicly run facility is because it's cheaper.

COVMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied they are in Arizona because
there sinply isn't capacity anywhere else. Prior admnistrations
attenpted to deal with that, but there were no alternatives

SENATOR DYSON asked if there were any publicly operated
facilities in the country where Al aska prisoners could have been
housed.

COWMWM SSI ONER- DESIGNEE ~ ANTRIM  replied industry publications
indicate that M nnesota has space at tinmes, but the decision to
go to Arizona was probably based on cost.

SENATOR DYSON asked if he would elect not to use a private in-
state facility that was significantly cheaper because of the
superior service and public policy call of having it run in the
public sector.

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM replied he wouldn't nake that
statenment; the Legislature would have to consider that question.
SB 65 is a solution that neets his concerns and citizen's
concerns in terns of econony.

SENATOR DYSON renmarked the state could "hold their feet to the
fire" on a contract and could see if soneone else "could beat
it."

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied a private facility would
have the sane problens as evidenced by recent negotiations at
the None facility. The State of Al aska doesn't have sharehol ders
to answer to.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 20, 2003



SENATOR DYSON asked if this Adm nistration would | ook favorably
on a project that could be operated at a reduced rate.

COM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRIM said that was his goal as a
manager .

5:30 p. m

SENATOR COWDERY asked if he would give favorable consideration
to an owner/operator who could build and run a facility to his
specifications and at a | ower cost.

COWMWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied the Governor ran on a
public prison platform and has nmade a conmtnent to this
proj ect. He supports SB 65, as does the Departnent of
Corrections, but a state nanager nust consider costs. He thought
the reality of such a situation would be tough because of the
profit margin that has to be built into a private operation. The
departnment is talking about changing the entire way they do
busi ness since current facilities are old and ill designed and
require nore staff to run. He opined state enployees who go
through the academes are the highest trained correctional
officers in the Northwest. He stated, "W provide a product of
t he state t hat keeps our citizens safer t han any
alternatives...."

He added there is a lot of roomin the facilities for private
contracting. The basic security and probation staff for the good
of public safety has got to be state enpl oyees.

SENATOR COADERY asked if he had any safety statistics on the
private facility in Arizona.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM replied he could provide nore
material than he'd want on the subject.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if public facilities are safer than
private facilities.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE ANTRI M replied a nunber of studies lead to
t hat concl usi on.

SENATOR GUESS asked why he didn't think Southeast Al aska needed
expansi on.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRI M expl ained any increase in the
system woul d have the effect of noving people back where they

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 20, 2003



belong. In Juneau, nore than 30 percent of the population is
from sonmewhere other than Juneau, primarily Anchorage.

SENATOR GUESS asked if that neant there are no prisoners from
Sout heast Al aska in other facilities.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE~ ANTRIM  said he wouldn't make that
assunption. Because of transport pressures, the departnment noves
prisoners all over. Sone prisoners that are from Juneau are at
program facilities outside the Juneau area. Sone |long-term
prisoners are in Anchorage and sone are noved to Arizona. This
added capacity would provide the ability to return prisoners to
Juneau or wherever they are from when their release date
appr oaches.

The goal is to nove prisoners closer to honme at the end of their
sentence because all prisoners nust be released at the place of
arrest. If the prisoner isn't returned prior to release, the
state nust buy the prisoner a return ticket to the comunity of
arrest upon their rel ease.

CHAIR TAYLOR thanked him for the presentation and in-depth
answers. He asked if the fiscal note analysis for 1,000
prisoners at $70 per day x 365 days is a 2008 projection for the
Arizona facility.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE  ANTRIM  replied that would cover the
expansion they are anticipating in their system in addition to
the current nunber. The contract in Arizona is now $54 plus
built-in costs bringing the total to about $66 per day. There
are 650 prisoners there now

CHAIR TAYLOR calculated the actual dollar savings, if things
were to stay constant, would be $14 to $15 mllion rather than
the projected $41 mllion.

There being no further questions for Conm ssioner-designee
Antrim Chair Taylor asked M. Pruitt to give his testinony.

MR, FRANK PRU TT described hinself as fornmer |egal counsel,
Deputy Commi ssioner and Conmi ssioner of the Departnent of
Corrections under Governors Sheffield, Cowper and Hi ckel and a
former state trooper. He spent 20 years in the public arena and
is now in private sector. He did not conme to testify on SB 65

but wanted to respond to sone inaccuracies with respect to HB
55. Per diem of $91 per day per bed includes capital and
operating costs; it excludes nmjor nedical and transportation

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- February 20, 2003



costs. HB 55 is about the Wittier proposal, which is close to
the population center. He estimated transportation costs to be
50 cents per day.

Maj or nedical, however, is another matter. Inmate health care is
about $16. The private contractor anticipates providing health
care to the exclusion of major nedical. In the Departnent of
Correction operating budget, the total annual health care cost
is about $17 million. About half of the $17 nmillion is personnel
costs and half of that, or about $4 mllion, is contract costs.
He thought major nedical was buried in the $2 to $4 nmllion of
contractual services for dental and nedical services. Under any
circunstances, the daily cost of care for prisoners per day
woul d be under $95, not $120.

The prelimnary design of the Wittier facility is based upon
current Departnent of Corrections standards, which has a four-
prisoner to one correction officer ratio. The private facility
is designed on a 1 to 4.5 ratio. He thought this dialogue was
very healthy because of the assertions that the private sector
can deliver conparable quality at |ess cost.

He explained he negotiated the Arizona contract as one of the
| ast acts of the Hickel Administration. This was negotiated as a
stopgap neasure for the incomng admnistration because there
were no beds left in this state or any state. Three private
conpanies had beds and Corrections Corporation of Anerica
[ Fl orence, Arizona] was sel ected.

CHAI R TAYLOR expressed hope the Legislature would nove forward
on the issue this session one way or the other. He didn't know
if the solution would be beneficial to the state in terns of
saving noney and beneficial to the public sector concerns for
security and housi ng Al aska prisoners in state.

MR PRUTT agreed and said he thought the Arizona contract,
after eight vyears, was a nodel governnent/private sector
partnership. The security there has been no better or worse than
conparable state systenms as indicated by a recent Harvard Law
Revi ew. He is convinced the private sector can deliver
conparable state services at roughly 15 percent Iless than
conparabl e state operated services in the state, but it wll
take a cooperative effort.

SENATOR DYSON asked if his bid included major nedical while the
pl an received fromthe departnent did not.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 20, 2003



MR. PRUTT replied the presentation from the departnment set out
the per diemrate in HB 55 at $91 and added $36.25 for a total
HB 55 rate. HB 55 anticipates capital and operating costs wll
be included along with health care prograns, admnistrative
overhead, etc., but it excludes the najor nedical portion of the
total health cost, which he calculated to be about $2 per day
per inmate. If you add $2 to $91 you get $93 and if you add
another $1 for admnistration and transportation, it's $94. HB
55 probably should have been drafted so that the private
contract was guaranteeing costs at a percentage of the nore
costly state services.

SENATOR DYSON poi nted out costs were based on different staff to
inmate ratios. He asked what the 15 percent difference in
staffing means in total costs.

MR. PRU TT replied he could get that information for him

SENATOR DYSON asked if he was using adjoining cells in his
pr oposal s.

MR PRUTT replied he initially used staffing ratios that the
state uses, but it would be easy to take the departnent’s nodel
and estimte what it would cost the private sector to build.

CHAI R TAYLOR said there were about 30 nore witnesses to testify
and they would continue to work on this issue.

SB 65 was held in comittee.

#

CHAI R TAYLOR adj ourned the neeting at 5:45 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- February 20, 2003



